
 

                         

 

 

 

 

                             

 

 

 

TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH 

 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD  

MEETING 

 

TUESDAY, JULY 1, 2025 

 

AGENDA PACKET 

 

1



Town of Melbourne Beach 

PUBLIC NOTICE 

AGENDA 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD MEETING 
TUESDAY, JULY 1, 2025 @ 6:30 PM 

COMMUNITY CENTER – 509 OCEAN AVENUE 

Board Members:  Alternate Board Members 
Chairman David Campbell  Alternate Todd Albert     
Vice-Chairman Kurt Belsten  Alternate Jason Judge  
Member April Evans  

  Staff Members: 
  Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro   
 Town Clerk Amber Brown  
 Building Official Roberto Moreno

Member Dan Harper 
Member Gabor Kishegyi 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A. May 6, 2025 minutes

4. NEW BUSINESS
A. Discussion on pervious/impervious ratios

i. Town Code of Ordinances
ii. Document from the Environmental Advisory Board

B. Discussion on adding a finger pier/dock at the Sixth Ave boat ramp
i. Documents from the June Regular Town Commission Meeting agenda packet

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS

6. OLD BUSINESS
A. Review of the Environmental Advisory Board's proposed changes to the tree ordinance

7. PUBLIC COMMENT
Please limit comments to items that are not on the agenda

8. REPORTS: TOWN MANAGER AND TOWN ATTORNEY

9. ITEMS TO BE ADDED TO THE AGENDA FOR FUTURE MEETINGS

10. ADJOURNMENT

PURSUANT TO SECTION 286.0105, FLORIDA STATUTES, THE TOWN HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT: In order to appeal any decision 
made at this meeting, you will need a verbatim transcript of the proceedings. It will be your responsibility to ensure such a record is 
made. Such person must provide a method for recording the proceedings verbatim as the Town does not do so. In accordance with 
the Americans with Disability Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons needing special accommodations for this meeting 
shall, at least 5 days prior to the meeting, contact the Office of the Town Clerk at (321) 724-5860 or Florida Relay System at 711. 

2

townclerk
Inserted Text
o



Page 1 of 3 

 

Town of Melbourne Beach 
 

MINUTES 
 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD MEETING 

TUESDAY, MAY 6, 2025 @ 6:30 PM 

COMMUNITY CENTER – 509 OCEAN AVENUE 

 
Board Members:                    Alternate Board Members      Staff Members: 

Chairman David Campbell                 Alternate Todd Albert          Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro  

Vice Chairman Kurt Belsten        Alternate Jason Judge   Town Clerk Amber Brown 

Member April Evans         

Member Dan Harper 

Member Gabor Kishegyi 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

Chairman David Campbell called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

2. ROLL CALL 

 

Deputy Clerk Cyd Cardwell conducted the roll call. 

 

Present:       Staff Present:     

Chairman David Campbell   Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 

Vice Chairman Kurt Belsten   Town Planner Corey O’Gorman 

Member April Evans    Deputy Clerk Cyd Cardwell 

Member Dan Harper     

Member Gabor Kishegyi 

Alternate Todd Albert  

Alternate Jason Judge 

 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. April 8, 2025 minutes 

 

Member Kurt Belsten made a motion to approve; Member April Evans seconded; Motion carried 

5-0. 

 

4. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Site plan approval for 394 Riverview Lane – New single-family home 

 

Member Gabor Kishegyi had a question about the lot being non-confirming that was 

answered by a previous Board of Adjustment meeting.  

3



Page 2 of 3 

 

Chairman David Campbell confirmed that the Board of Adjustment had approved 

the non-conformity. 

 

Member Gabor Kishegyi discussed the ordinance passed in March to clarify how the 

Town measures maximum building height and questioned whether this new 

construction is conforming. 

 

Member Dan Harper said that when he went over the plans, he believed the 

measurements given fit within the maximum allowed. 

 

Member April Evans asked whether the new ordinance for height had been codified. 

 

Member Gabor Kishegyi said the ordinance was codified on March 19, 2025 and was 

Ordinance 2025-01. 

 

Town Planner Corey O’Gorman said the overall height is conforming based on the 

new ordinance and his calculations. 

 

Member Dan Harper said that he is unable to find the finished floor elevation on the 

plans. 

 

Town Planner Corey O’Gorman confirmed that while it’s not on the plans, the survey 

does show the proposed finished floor elevation at 7.53’. 

 

Member Dan Harper stated that he was unfamiliar with the flood zone requirement 

and asked the Town Planner for clarification. 

 

Town Planner Corey O’Gorman advised that FEMA regulations state the minimum 

finished floor elevation must be base flood plus 1’. 

 

Member Gabor Kishegyi asked for confirmation that their calculation for overall 

height starts with the crown of the road at 6’, finished floor elevation at 1.53’ above 

the crown, and then 27.1’ above that. 

 

Town Planner Corey O’Gorman confirmed Member Gabor Kishegyi’s calculations. 

 

Vice Chairman Kurt Belsten asked how long the variance on the property was valid 

for. 

 

Town Planner Corey O’Gorman did not see an expiration listed in the final order for 

the variance. 

 

Member April Evans asked if the board could approve the site plan contingent on 

confirmation that variance is still valid. 

 

4



Page 3 of 3 

 

Town Planner Corey O’Gorman replied that he believed they could do so. 

 

Member April Evans made a motion to approve contingent on confirmation that the variance is 

still valid; Member Kurt Belsten seconded; Motion carried 5-0. 

 

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

6. OLD BUSINESS 

 

7. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

8. REPORTS: TOWN MANAGER AND TOWN ATTORNEY 

 

A. Update regarding courts (tennis, pickleball, etc.) 

 

No discussion 

 

Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro stated that she was contacted by the Environmental 

Advisory Board (EAB) again about the tree ordinance; they are still working on it. She told 

the EAB they need to submit a plan to tell us what they want to do, and it needs to be 

timely and precise. 

 

Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro advised that the Town interviewed an individual for the 

Building Official vacancy and are checking his references. She also advised that the RFQ 

for private provider Building Official services drops Friday (05/16/2025) and will go in 

front of the Commission next. 

 

9. ITEMS TO BE ADDED TO THE AGENDA FOR FUTURE MEETINGS 

 

10. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Member April Evans motioned to adjourn; Member Dan Harper seconded; Motion carried 5-0. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 6:44 p.m. 

 

 

 

        ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________    ______________________________ 

David Campbell       Cyd Cardwell 

Chairman       Deputy Town Clerk 

5



§ 7A-30. DISTRICT REGULATIONS ESTABLISHED.

   District regulations shall be set forth in the following sections, and as set forth in §§ 7A-50 through 7A-69.

(`75 Code, Appendix A, Art. VI) (Ord. passed 9-26-72)

   This following table is to provide general information regarding zoning criteria, specific language included in each section
of the Zoning Ordinance takes precedence over this table.

1-RS, 2-RS, AND 3-RS SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT ZONING CRITERIA

 
CRITERIA (1)

Lot
Area
(min
sq ft)

Lot
Width
(min ft at
building
line)

Lot
Depth
(min
ft)

Lot
Coverage
(max % by
principal
structure
only)

Minimum
Pervious
Area %
per Lot

Living
Area (min
sq ft
excluding
garage
and porch)

Height
(maximum)

Minimum Yards (feet)

DISTRICT Front Side
Interior

Side
Corner Rear

1-RS 12,000 100 120 30 30 1,800 28 25 15 25 25

2-RS 11,250 90 100 30 30 1,600 28 25 15 25 25

3-RS 10,000 90 100 30 30 1,400(2) 28 25 15 25 25

(1)   Compliance with applicable supplementary regulations provided in §§ 7A-50 through 7A-69, and Chapter 9A is required.

(2)   One half of the garage area, not to exceed 200 square feet, excluding porches may be used to meet minimum square footage requirements.

 

(Am. Ord. 2017-05, adopted 12-20-17; Am. Ord. 2019-04, adopted 9-18-19)

6



7



8



9



10



Regular Town Commission Meeting Agenda 

 

Section:   New Business 

Meeting Date:  June 18, 2025 

Subject:  Finger pier (dock) at 6th Ave Boat Ramp 

Submitted by: Robert Baldwin, Commissioner 

 

Background Information 

The boat ramp at Melbourne Beach has traditionally served small boats, kayaks and 
paddleboards. With a water depth of only 12-16 inches at the ramp, it accommodates 
shallow-draft boats that are 20 feet long or shorter, providing access to the Indian River 
Lagoon. On both the northern and southern sides of the ramp, there is a seawall that is 
currently in poor condition and will need to be replaced at some point. To mitigate potential 
failure, the town has placed coquina boulders in front of the seawall on the southern side. 

For those unfamiliar with launching a boat at a boat ramp, and especially for those 
unfamiliar with the 6th Ave. ramp, here is the general procedure for launching a boat and 
boarding passengers there: 

1. Back the trailer down the ramp until the boat can float off into the Indian River Lagoon.  

2. If there’s a second person, that person gets in the boat, starts it and waits for the driver to 
park the vehicle and trailer before moving the boat.  If they are uncomfortable with starting 
the boat, then they must wade into the water and hold the boat away from the concrete 
ramp and coquina rocks to avoid damage to the boat’s hull. 

3. If there are other passengers, they will need to wade into the water, trying not to slip on 
the slimy ramp (this is one reason ramps have grooves in the concrete but that does not 
guarantee that a slip won’t happen because slime still grows there). 

4. Upon returning, the boat driver approaches the ramp, forcing the passengers and the 
vehicle driver to jump down onto the slimy ramp. The driver then retrieves the vehicle and 
trailer and backs down the ramp. 

5. Finally, the boat is loaded back onto the trailer. 

 

11



If a single person is trying to launch or recover their boat, this process is much more 
difficult as there is no place, such as a sandy beach to nose the boat up on or a dock to 
which to tie the boat. 

This method of operation is notably different from standard boat ramps found throughout 
the county and state. Typically, such ramps feature a dock where the boat can be securely 
tied up after launching, allowing passengers to board safely before heading out.  These 
common finger piers are also used to secure the boat while the driver retrieves the vehicle 
and trailer. 

Since the addition of the coquina rocks, the process of loading passengers onto the boat 
has become more difficult and poses a risk of damage to the boat and potential accidents. 
Currently, the only way to access the boat is by wading into the water and climbing aboard, 
which can be hazardous due to slippery algae on the concrete ramp and may not be 
possible for some people with disabilities. 

To enhance safety and streamline the boarding process, we recommend constructing a 4-
foot wide by 30-foot-long loading dock on the southern side of the ramp per the attached 
drawing. This addition would significantly improve the ease of launching boats and safely 
loading passengers.  We do NOT propose placing a deck at the end of the dock; this should 
diminish the attractiveness of the dock as a gathering place, alleviating privacy concerns of 
the neighboring residents.  The pier would be able to accommodate one boat on either 
side. 

Melbourne Beach resident, engineer and dock/seawall company owner, Mike Kalajian, has 
graciously offered to install the finger pier at no charge to the town.  He has also offered to 
repair it in the event it is damaged in a storm. 

 

Recommendation: Approve construction of the 30’ x 4’ finger pier at the 6th Ave boat ramp 
at no cost to the Town. 

 

Attachment: aerial view of proposed finger pier. 

 

12



31'-0"+/-

10'-0" 10'-0" 10'-0"

4'
-0

"

EXISTING BOAT RAMP

EXISTING SEAWALL

EXISTING SEAWALL

PROPOSED LOADING
PIER FOR BOAT RAMP

DECKING LAYOUT DECK FRAMING PLAN

4'-0"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"

30
'-0

"

31
'-0

"

4'-0"

10
'-0

"
10

'-0
"

10
'-0

"

30
'-0

"

31
'-0

"

8" DIA. PT
WOOD PILE
(8 PLACES)

2x8 NO. 1
STRINGERS

2x10 NO. 1
COLLARS
DOUBLE
BOLTED W/
5/8" SS
BOLTS

AZEK
PVC
DECKING

PROPOSED COST ESTIMATE TO BUILD LOADING PIER AT 6TH AVE BOAT RAMP IS $9,000.  THE DOCK
WILL BE CONSTRUCTED BY SHORELINE MARINE CONTRACTORS AT NO COST TO THE TOWN.

PVC DECKING

2x10 COLLAR WITH
(2) 5/8" DIA SS
BOLTS

8" DIA PILING

2x8 PT STRINGERS

 RIVER BOTTOM

TYPICAL DOCK SECTION

4'-0"

E
M

B
E

D
 P

E
R

P
LA

N
 N

O
TE

S

WATER

revisions
description

sheet number

MAK

by MK Structural Engineering, LLC. all rights
reserved.When plotted at full size, this sheet
measures 11" x17"

checked by:

S1

5
8

7
 W

E
S

T
 E

A
U

 G
A

L
L

IE
 B

L
V

D
S

U
IT

E
 2

0
1

M
E

L
B

O
U

R
N

E
, F

L
 3

2
9

3
5

P
: 3

2
1

.6
0

0
.0

6
7

2
 O

R
 3

2
1

.5
7

4
.2

7
0

2
w

w
w

.m
ks

tr
u

c
tu

ra
l.c

o
m

C
e

rt
ifi

c
a

te
 o

f 
A

u
th

o
ri

za
ti

o
n

#
C

A
 2

7
8

0
0

MAKdrawn by:

M
E

L
B

O
U

R
N

E
 B

E
A

C
H

B
O

A
T

 R
A

M
P

 D
O

C
K

M
E

L
B

O
U

R
N

E
  B

E
A

C
H

, F
L

 3
2

9
5

1

date

PROPOSAL
issued
for

06/5/2025

S
H

O
R

E
L

IN
E

M
A

R
IN

E
5

8
7

 W
E

S
T

 E
A

U
 G

A
L

L
IE

B
L

V
D

 S
U

IT
E

 2
0

1
M

E
L

B
O

U
R

N
E

, F
L

 3
2

9
3

5

D-1   CODES:  - FLORIDA BUILDING CODE 2023, ASCE
  7-22 "MINIMUM DESIGN LOADS FOR BUILDINGS
  AND OTHER STRUCTURES"

D-2   DESIGN WIND SPEED: 150 MPH (3 SECOND 
  GUST)

          EXPOSURE 'C', OPEN STRUCTURE, GCPI = 0
D-3   DESIGN LOADS:

  DECK LIVE LOAD: 50 PSF

DESIGN CRITERIA

STRUCTURAL NOTES

13

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26


	1 Cover Page - Agenda Packet.pdf (p.1)
	250701 PnZ Agenda.pdf (p.2)
	250506 PNZ Draft Minutes.pdf (p.3-5)
	Town Code of Ordinances 7A-30 District Regulations Established.pdf (p.6)
	Pervious to Impervious Ratios.pdf (p.7-10)
	dock agenda item.pdf (p.11-12)
	Boat Ramp Loading Dock Proposal 6-5-2025.pdf (p.13)
	S1

	Tree Ordinance Proposed Changes.pdf (p.14-25)
	Tree Permitting Review EAB in Permit Process.pdf (p.26)

